
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Final October 12, 2015 

 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Special Joint Meeting of the Troy City Council and Planning Commission was held on 
Monday, October 12, 2015, at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the 
meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Community Development Planning Update (Presented by: Brian Kischnick, City 

Manager) 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager, introduced Brent Savidant, Planning Director, who discussed a 
presentation regarding the Master Plan Update. 
 
Mr. Kischnick presented an update on Community Development Planning. 
 

C-2 Roundtable Discussion (Facilitated by: Mayor Dane Slater and Planning 

Commission Chairman Don Edmunds) 
 
Mayor Slater opened the roundtable discussion. He said the current Master Plan that was 
reviewed 7 years ago was done well, but then the economic downturn hit Troy. He said that he 
wants to see Troy being more proactive now that the economy is rebounding. He said that now 
is the perfect time to revisit planning the continued development of Big Beaver Road and Maple 
Road. He said he would like to see more height along both those corridors. Mayor Slater said 
that he supports further development on Town Center Drive as well. 
 
Chairman Edmunds said that five of the Planning Commission members attended the Michigan 
Association of Planning conference recently. He said that this conference was very informative 
and relevant to Troy. He said he agrees with Mayor Slater and he wants to see great things 
done in Troy. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that the Planning Commission has been vexed for years with trying to get 
developers to add height to their developments. He does not want to see more single-story 
plazas along Big Beaver. He would like to see a minimum requirement of two stories on new 
developments on Big Beaver. 

City Council Members Planning Commission Members 
Mayor Dane Slater Chairman Don Edmunds  
Jim Campbell Ollie Apahidean 
Steve Gottlieb Karen Crusse 
Dave Henderson Carlton Faison 
Ellen Hodorek Michael W. Hutson 
Ed Pennington Tom Krent 
Doug Tietz Padma Kuppa 
 Philip Sanzica - Absent 
 John J. Tagle 
 Frencheska Brikho (Student) - Absent 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Final October 12, 2015 

 

- 2 - 

Mrs. Kuppa asked about the results of the Troy Futures Committee. Mr. Tagle answered that 
the Futures reports were taken into consideration when reviewing the Master Plan. She also 
asked how to get more groups to come forward to be represented and participate in planning 
discussions. Mr. Tagle said it’s difficult to get residents to participate if there isn’t a lot of 
interest or perceived need. Mr. Kischnick pointed out the Focus Groups that were formed in 
2014, and talked about homeowners groups, boards and committees, and topic-focused 
discussion groups that the City has formed in order to get residents involved.  
 
Mr. Krent discussed the need for the City Council and the Planning Commission to be the 
visionaries for the City. He said that at conferences like the National Association of Planners 
conference, he was very inspired by what other cities are doing. He would like to see Council 
Members also attend these Planners conferences. Mayor Slater commented that bringing in 
experts from other cities, such as the Move Across Troy expert from Chicago, is exactly what 
Troy needs to keep doing. He said that now is the time for City Council to tell the Planning 
Commission what Council is looking for.  
 
Mr. Faison asked if the plan to review the Master Plan incorporates the ideas that are being 
presented at this meeting. Mayor Slater said that City Administration is looking to these joint 
meetings for the direction in which City Council and the Planning Commission want to head. 
 
Mrs. Crusse said that for example, the developments at Town Center and Livernois need to 
flow together, and create cohesiveness with the residential areas, Big Beaver, and the rest of 
the amenities in the area. She said that she wants to see ideas for funding and development of 
the Civic Center campus, including the Library. 
 
Mr. Tagle said that there needs to be a marketing strategy for going outside this region to bring 
new projects into Troy. Mayor Slater said he agrees with Mrs. Crusse and Mr. Tagle, we need 
to look at the bigger picture of the Big Beaver Corridor. He said he thinks there needs to be a 
moratorium on development on Big Beaver until there are decisions made as to the vision of 
the Corridor. Mr. Tagle referenced the City of Fenton and how they are approaching 
development decisions and vision. Mayor Slater said that the Master Plan needs to be 
reviewed more often than every five years. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Campbell said that he likes the standards along Big Beaver Road with the 
buildings closer to the road, and he agrees that there should not be any more single-story 
developments along Big Beaver. Mr. Krent offered to make a presentation to City Council 
regarding the National Association of Planners conference in Atlanta and the inspired ideas 
that were presented there.  
 
Mayor Slater said that the Planning Commission and Downtown Development Authority need 
to be included in planning trails and pathways, and planning the Big Beaver Corridor. Mayor 
Slater reiterated that there needs to be a moratorium on development on Big Beaver until the 
plan for the Corridor is revised. 
 
Council Member Hodorek said that she would like to see if vacant office buildings in north Troy 
could be redeveloped into residential housing. She said that Troy needs to be marketing our 
location as an ideal location for businesses and residents. Chairman Edmunds said that at the 
Michigan Planner’s conference, he heard other cities talking about the argument of higher 
density developments being marketable, and he said that Troy can and should insist on the 
standards it wants. 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Final October 12, 2015 

 

- 3 - 

 
Council Member Tietz said he would like the Master Plan to focus on all parts of the City, 
including the areas that are not as exclusive as the Big Beaver Corridor. He said he would like 
to see more focus on other areas of the City such as Fourteen Mile Road and John R Road. 
Mayor Slater agreed that the Master Plan needs to focus on all areas of the City. Council 
Member Tietz said that the City needs to focus on getting input from residents south of Big 
Beaver Road. 
 
Council Member Henderson said that the idea of moving City Hall to a different location needs 
to be considered at some point in the future. He said that making Big Beaver walkable is a 
great idea and the City needs to encourage input from residents. Mayor Slater said that the 
market is out there for development along the Maple Road Corridor as well. Council Member 
Pennington said that he thinks the areas of Maple Road and Town Center will attract new 
residents to the area. Mayor Slater said that he has received communications with some good 
ideas for how to develop the Civic Center complex, and move City Hall. 
 
Council Member Hodorek said that the Library building and City Hall both need attention. She 
said that if it’s possible to use the proceeds from the sale of the land to pay for moving City Hall 
and Library, then the City needs to investigate those ideas. She encouraged anyone listening 
to these creative discussions about new ideas to support the process and join the discussion. 
Mayor Slater said he would also like the Master Plan review to revisit Rochester Road. 
 
Mr. Kischnick said that the roads also need to be a focus since they are a vital part of Troy’s 
value as a city. He said that at the retreat last year, there was a session on the issue of City 
Hall, and that topic will be discussed again at the retreat in 2016 on February 26th and 27th. He 
said that bringing in the Planning Commission and Downtown Development Authority to the 
retreat will enhance the conversations at the retreat. Mayor Slater said that the area of 
Rochester Road and South Boulevard is also a gateway to Troy and is in desperate need of 
repair. 
 
Council Member Pennington said that City Hall is the center of Troy, and should be an 
impressive sight, and something needs to be done soon while the economy will support it. 
Mayor Slater said he wants some experts to come in and talk about what is feasible and not 
feasible for the Civic Center campus. Council Member Henderson said that the cycle of life in 
Troy and varying cost levels of housing are issues as well. 
 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Jim Werpetinski – Commented that he is happy with the creative, proactive discussions that 
are taking place. He would like to see more emphasis on the Maple Road Corridor and 
Rochester Road. 
 
Kim Antoine – Commented that he would like to see a downtown area in Troy, and would like to 
see development in the area of Rochester Court and Rochester Road area. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Final October 12, 2015 

 

- 4 - 

E. ADJOURNMENT:  

 
The Meeting ADJOURNED at 7:04 PM. 
 
 

 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Dickson, CMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 




